
Memorandum to the City of Markham Committee of Adjustment 
July 23, 2020 
 
File:    A/074/20 
Address:   264 Riverlands Ave – Markham, ON 
Applicant:    Rishi & Fion Madan 
Agent:    Vin Engineering Inc. 
Hearing Date: Wednesday July 29, 2020 
 
The following comments are provided on behalf of the East Team. The applicant is 
requesting relief from the Residential Two Exception Zone (R2*190*465) requirements of 
By-law 177-96, as amended, as they relate to a proposed coach house addition on top of 
an existing detached garage. The applicant is requesting the following variances, to 
permit: 
 

a) Section 6.3.1.2:   

a detached private garage and any storey above the first storey of a 

detached private garage to be setback 4.72 m (15.49 ft) from the main 

building, whereas the By-law requires a minimum of 6.0 m (19.69 ft); and 

b) Section 6.3.1.7 b):   

a maximum lot coverage of 18.60%, whereas the By-law permits a 

maximum of 18.0% for a detached private garage on a lot with a frontage 

less than 9.75 m (31.99 ft). 

BACKGROUND 
Property Description 
The 283.20 m2 (3,048.34 ft2) subject property is located on the north side of Riverlands 
Avenue, east of Cornell Centre Boulevard, west of Bur Oak Avenue, and south of Cornell 
Park Avenue. There is an existing two-storey single detached dwelling on the subject 
property and a one-storey detached garage in the rear yard which is accessed by a rear 
public laneway. The detached garage shares a common wall with the abutting garage to 
the east at 266 Riverlands Avenue.  
 
The property is located within an established residential neighbourhood comprised of a 
mix of low rise housing forms including two-storey single detached, semi-detached, and 
townhouse dwellings. The surrounding context comprises a lane-based community, in 
which vehicular access and parking is provided via rear lanes to detached or attached 
garages. There are examples of coach houses located above detached private garages 
in the surrounding area. 
 
Proposal 
The applicant is proposing to construct a coach house above the existing one-storey 
detached garage on the subject property. The stairs which provide access to the coach 
house are located within the required setback between the existing main dwelling and 
detached garage which necessitates the variances as they relate to a reduced minimum 
setback and increased maximum lot coverage. The existing detached garage is being 
expanded to accommodate the proposed stairs internally, therefore reducing the required 
setback between the main house and detached garage and increasing the lot coverage. 
 



Official Plan 2014 (partially approved on November 24/17, and updated on April 9/18)  
The 2014 Official Plan designates the subject property “Residential Low Rise”, which 
provides for low rise housing forms, permitting a coach house above a lane based garage.  
 
Zoning By-Law 177-96 
The subject property is zoned Residential Two Exceptions 190 and 465 (R2*190*465) 
under By-law 177-96, as amended, which permits various low rise housing forms, 
including single detached dwellings. Exception 190 also permits one accessory dwelling 
unit above a detached private garage. The proposed development does not comply with 
the minimum setback from the main building, and maximum lot coverage. 
 
Zoning Preliminary Review (ZPR) Undertaken 
The applicant completed a ZPR on May 5, 2020 to confirm the variances required for the 
proposed development. 
 
COMMENTS 
The Planning Act states that four tests must be met in order for a variance to be granted 
by the Committee of Adjustment: 

a) The variance must be minor in nature; 
b) The variance must be desirable, in the opinion of the Committee of 

Adjustment, for the appropriate development or use of land, building or 
structure; 

c) The general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law must be maintained; 
d) The general intent and purpose of the Official Plan must be maintained. 

 
Reduction in Setback from Main Building 
The applicant is requesting a minimum setback of 4.72 m (15.49 ft) from the main building 
to the detached private garage, whereas the By-law requires a minimum setback of 6.0 m 
(19.69 ft). This is a reduction of approximately 1.28 m (4.20 ft). The requested variance is 
attributable to the garage expansion into the required setback to accommodate stairs 
accessing the proposed second-storey coach house. Coach houses on top of garages 
along laneways are permitted by the By-law, and are generally encouraged by the Official 
Plan in appropriate locations. 
 
Staff are of the opinion that while the requested variance would result in a reduced amenity 
space in the rear yard, there is a variation of existing setbacks between homes and 
garages and amenity areas provided along the laneway. These built forms include both 
attached garages that are setback from the rear lot line, and detached garages with 
setbacks from the main building that are less than 6.0 m (19.69 ft) according to the City of 
Markham’s Geologic records. Staff note that approval of the requested variance would 
result in a setback that is smaller than other setback reductions approved in the area. 
However, the approval of this variance would allow for the construction of the proposed 
coach house which is desirable by the City and the Province, in promoting affordable 
housing.  
 
Increase in Maximum Lot Coverage 
The applicant is requesting a maximum lot coverage of 18.60%, whereas the By-law 
permits a maximum lot coverage of 18.0% for a detached private garage on lots with 
frontages less than 9.75 m (31.99 ft). The subject property has a frontage of 8.85 m (29.04 
ft). This is an increase of 0.60% or approximately 1.70 m2 (18.30 ft2) in lot coverage. Staff 



are of the opinion that the proposed increase in lot coverage will not significantly add to 
the scale and massing of the dwelling and do not object to this variance.  
 
PUBLIC INPUT SUMMARY 
No written submissions were received as of July 23, 2020. It is noted that additional 
information may be received after the writing of the report, and the Secretary-Treasurer 
will provide information on this at the meeting.   

 
CONCLUSION 
Planning staff have reviewed the application and have no objection, and recommend that 
Committee satisfy themselves that the variance application meets the four tests under 
Section 45(1) of the Planning Act. Staff recommend that the Committee consider public 
input in reaching a decision.  
 
The onus is ultimately on the applicant to demonstrate why they should be granted relief 
from the requirements of the By-law, and how they satisfy the tests of the Planning Act 
required for the granting of minor variances. 
 
Please see Appendix “A” for conditions to be attached to any approval of this application. 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix “A” – Conditions of Approval 
Appendix “B” – Plans  
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Aleks Todorovski, Planner, Zoning and Special Projects 
 
REVIEWED BY: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Stacia Muradali, Acting Development Manager, East District  
 
File Path: Amanda\File\ 20 118471 \Documents\District Team Comments Memo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPENDIX “A” 
CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO ANY APPROVAL OF FILE A/074/20 
 

1. The variances apply only to the proposed development as long as it remains. 

2. That the variances apply only to the subject development, in substantial conformity 

with the batch stamped plans attached as Appendix “B” to this Staff Report and 

received by the City of Markham on July 14, 2020, and that the Secretary-

Treasurer receive written confirmation from the Director of Planning and Urban 

Design or designate that this condition has been fulfilled to his or her satisfaction. 

 

CONDITIONS PREPARED BY: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Aleks Todorovski, Planner, Zoning and Special Projects 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



APPENDIX “B” 
PLANS TO BE ATTACHED TO ANY APPROVAL OF FILE A/074/20 
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